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AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY U.S. MAIL 

Re: In the Matter of the License of Michael Hedrix, LNIIA 
License Number: 3049 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF RAMSEY ) 

KRISTINE MYERS, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

That at the City of St. Paul, County of Ramsey and State of Minnesota, on January 26, 

2017, she caused to be served the STIPULATION AND ORDER, by depositing the same in the 

United States mail at said city and state, true and correct copy(ies) thereof, properly enveloped 

with prepaid first class postage. and addressed to: 

PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL 

Tamara L Novotny 
Cousineau McGuire C hartered 
550 Utica A venue South, Suite 600 
Minneapolis, MN 55416 



BEFORE THE MINNESOTA 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR NURSING HOME ADMINISTRATORS 

In the Matter of 
Michael Hedrix, LNHA 
License No. 3049 

STIPULATION 
AND ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by Michael Hedrix ("Licensee"), and the 

Minnesota Board of Examiners for Nursing Home Administrators Standards of Practice 

Committee ("Committee") as follows: 

I. 

JURISDICTION 

l. The Minnesota Board of Examiners for Nursing Home Administrators ("Board") 

is authorized pursuant to Minn. Stat. Ch. 144A to license and regulate nursing home 

administrators and to take disciplinary action as appropriate. 

2. Licensee holds a license from the Board to practice as a licensed nursing home 

administrator in the State of Minnesota and is subject to the jurisdiction of the Board with respect 

to the matters referred to in this Stipulation and Order. 

II. 

FACTS 

3. For the purpose of this stipulation, the Board may consider the following facts as 

true: 

a. On December 12, 1997, Licensee was issued a license to practice as a 

licensed nursing home administrator in the State of Minnesota. Licensee holds Minnesota 

license #3049. 



b. Licensee was unknowingly appointed the Administrator of Record at 

Essentia Health Homestead ("Deer River Homestead") located in Deer River, Minnesota, on 

June 20, 20 14. Licensee continued to serve as administrator at Deer River Homestead until 

January 12, 2015, when he resigned the position. Licensee previously served in the same 

capacity from March 1, 1995 to December 12, 1997. ln addition, Licensee has been the 

Administrator of Essentia Health located in Sandstone, Minnesota since March 20, 2015. 

Licensee was also serving as the Chief Operating Officer/President of Essential Health 

Sandstone for years prior to and throughout the interim administrator appointment at Deer River 

Homestead. 

c. While Administrator of Record ("AOR") at Deer River Homestead, 

Licensee visited approximately every six weeks, spending four to six hours at the facility during 

each visit. When not onsite, Licensee communicated with the facility's staff and leadership team 

by email and telephone, including weekly conference calls. 

d. When appointing Licensee as administrator, the Deer River Board 

recognized and understood that managing day-to-day operations of Deer River Homestead would 

need to be delegated to others. Accordingly, Licensee delegated his Deer River Homestead 

administrator duties, including day-to-day operations, to two individua ls. Licensee understood 

and stated that at least one of the two delegates was present at Deer River Homestead two to 

three days per week; however, those individuals stated they were unclear regarding the 

delegation of authority. 

e. On October 3, 2014, the Minnesota Department of Health ("MOH") 

completed a survey and compliance review of the Deer River Homestead. The MOH survey and 

compliance review indicated substandard quality of care in violation of F 309, S/S=H- 42 CFR 
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483.25, which requires that residents are provided care and serv ices to attain or maintain the 

highest practicable physical, mental and psychosocial well-being. 

f. During the MDH survey, an unli censed hospital administrator served as 

the administrative liaison contact, or admi nistrator de-facto, fo r the facil ity when Licensee was 

unable to be physically present; Licensee was onsite during part o f the survey, including the exit 

interview. Licensee's self-reported official board record indicates that Licensee was listed as the 

Administrator of Record. At least some department managers were unaware of Licensee's role 

when asked for clari fication by the survey team. 

g. As evidenced by the MDH su rvey, Licensee failed to ensure that quality 

improvement processes were immediately enacted. However, during Licensee's time as 

administrator, policies and procedures were enacted or modified such that Deer River Homestead 

was found to have corrected all deficiencies and deemed in substantial compliance with MDH as 

of January 2, 20 15. 

h. Licensee requested that he be immediately notified of abuse/mistreatment 

allegations and responded to all such incidents of which he was notified; however, he did not 

follow up with staff when he did not receive incident report notifications during his time as 

AOR, except at quarterly quality meetings. 

1. Licensee failed to adequately participate 111 Quality Assessment & 

Assurance ("QAA") Committees that reviewed all incident and accident reports and revised 

pol icies as indicated in order to provide resident safety. All incident and accident reports were 

review by Deer River Homestead 's interdi sciplinary team, and any reports alleging abuse, theft, 

or bruising of unknown origin were investigated and reported, and all reported incidents were 
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reviewed by the QAA team. Licensee participated in meetings regarding any incidents of any 

severity and in two quarterly QAPI meetings. 

III. 

REGULATIONS 

4. The Board views Licensee's practices as described in paragraph 3 above to be in 

violation of statutes and rules enforced by the Board and constitutes a reasonable basis in law 

and fact to justify the disciplinary action provided for in this Stipulation and Consent Order. 

Licensee accepts that the Committee finds the conduct cited above constitutes the following 

violations: 

a. Failed to maintain a sufficient on-site presence in the facility to effectively 

manage the facility in compliance with applicable rules and regulations, in violation of Minn. 

Stat. section 144A.04 subd. 5. 

b. Failed to comply with Minnesota Statutes, section 626.557, the Vulnerable 

Adult Act, in violation of Minn. Rules 6400.6900 subp. l(D). 

IV. 

REMEDY 

5. Upon this stipulation and all the files, records, and proceedings herein, and 

without further notice or hearing, the Board enters an order as follows: 

a. The Board REPRIMANDS Licensee. 

b. The Board CONDITIONS Licensee' s license as follows: 

l) Within six months of the date of this Order, Licensee must take ten 

(10) credits of continuing education classes in the following categories: the Vulnerable Adult 

Act; Customer Care; Eth ics; and/or Quality of Care. The continuing education must be in-person 
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and preapproved by the Committee. In order to obtain preapproval, Licensee must submit 

written documentation to the Committee, such as measurable learning objectives and 

qualifications of the instructor. These ten ( I 0) hours of continuing education may not be applied 

to the continuing education requirements for license renewal. Within two weeks after the six 

month completion deadline, Licensee shall submit to the Board documentation of his completion 

of the required continuing education classes. 

2) During two years from the date of thi s Order, should licensee be 

required to serve as the shared administrator of record in more than one nursing home 

simultaneously, the following shall be required: 

i.) Licensee shall notify the Board prior to the assignment if 

possible, but no later than two (2) working days after the start of the assignment. The 

notification shall identify the facilities, the distance between the facilities, the anticipated 

duration of this assignment, and include the schedule of onsite times that Licensee shall be at 

each facility. The notice shall also specify the person or persons that will assume responsibility 

for each facility when Licensee is not onsite. Licensee shall also acknowledge that this 

assignment is voluntary, and that Licensee has the ability and capacity to effectively serve as the 

admi nistrator of record in each facility. 

ii.) Licensee shall submit documentation signed by the MDH 

license holder for each facility that specifies that shared administrative services are required, the 

anticipated length of the arrangement, and that the schedule of onsite services is considered 

appropriate to provide for the health, safety, comfort and well-being of residents. The MDH 

licensee for each facil ity shall notify staff, residents, and families of the shared administrator 

services and provide a copy of the notice to the Board. 
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6. Upon completing the requirements set forth in paragraph 5, the conditions on 

Licensee's license w ill be administratively lifted. The Board wil l notify Licensee within ten 

days of removing the conditions from his license. 

7. fn the event Licensee res ides or practices outside the State of Minnesota while 

this Order is in effect, Licensee must promptly notify the Board in writing of the location of his 

residence and al l work sites. Periods of residency or practice outside o f Minnesota will not be 

credited toward any period of Licensee's suspended, limited , or conditioned license in Minnesota 

unless Licensee demonstrates that practice in another state conforms completely with Licensee's 

Minnesota license to practice as a licensed nursing home administrator. 

v. 
CONSEQUENCES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR ADDITIONAL VIOLATIONS 

8. It is Licensee's responsibility to ensure all reports and documentation required to 

be filed with the Board pursuant to this Stipulation and Order are timely filed. Failure to submit 

reports or documentation on or before their due date is a violation of this Stipulation and Order. 

The information contained in the reports and documentation shall be submitted to the Board by 

United States Mail, courier, or personal delivery only. 

9. If Licensee fails to comply with or violates this Stipulation and Order, the 

Committee may, in its discretion, seek additional discipline either by initiating a contested case 

proceeding pursuant to Minnesota Statutes chapter 14 or by bringing the matter directly to the 

Board pursuant to the following procedure: 

a. The Committee will schedule a hearing before the Board. At least 20 days 

before the hearing, the Committee will mail Licensee a notice of the violation(s) alleged by the 

Committee. Jn addition, the notice will des ignate the time and place of the hearing. Within ten 

days after the notice is mailed, Licensee will submit a written response to the allegations. lf 
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Licensee docs not submit a timely response to the Board, the allegations may be deemed 

admitted. 

b. The Committee, in its discretion, may schedule a conference with 

Licensee prior to the hearing before the Board to discuss the allegations and to attem pt to reso lve 

the allegations through agreement. 

e. Prior to the hearing before the Board, the Committee and Licensee may 

submit affidav its and w ritten argument in support of their positions. At the hearing, the 

Committee and Licensee may present oral argument. Argument will not refer to matters outside 

the record. The evidentiary record wi ll be limited to the affidavits submitted prior to the hearing 

and this Stipulation and Order. The Committee will have the burden of proving by a 

preponderance of the ev idence that a violation has occurred. If Licensee has failed to submit a 

timely response to the allegations, Licensee may not contest the allegations, but may present 

argument concerning the appropriateness of additional discipline. Licensee waives a hearing 

before an administrative law judge, discovery, cross-examination of adverse witnesses, and other 

procedures governing hearings pursuant to Minnesota Statutes chapter 14. 

d. Licensee's correction of a violation before the conference, hearing, or 

meeting of the Board may be taken into account by the Board but will not limit the Board's 

authority to impose d iscipline for the violation. A decision by the Committee not to seek 

discipline when it first learns of a violation will not waive the Committee's right to later seek 

discipl ine fo r that violation, either alone or in combination with other violations, at any time 

whi le Licensee's license is in a conditional status. 

e. Fo llowing the hearing, the Board wi ll deliberate confidentially. If the 

allegations are not proved, the Board will dismiss the a llegations. If a violation is proved, the 

Board may impose add itional discipl ine, including additional conditions on Licensee's license, 

limitations, a period of suspension, additional condi tions of reinstatement, or revocation of 

Licensee's license. 

7 



f. Nothing herein will limit the Committee's or the Board's right to 

temporarily suspend Licensee's license pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 214.077, based on 

a violation of this Stipulation and Order or based on conduct of Licensee not specifically referred 

to herein. 

VI. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

10. In relation to the conduct at issue herein, Licensee waives the contested case 

hearing and all other procedures before the Board to which Licensee may be entitled under the 

Minnesota and United States constitutions, statutes, or rules. 

11. Licensee waives any claims against the Board, the Minnesota Attorney General, 

the State of Minnesota, and their agents, employees, and representatives related to the 

investigation of the conduct herein, or the negotiation or execution of this Stipulation and Order, 

which may otherwise be available to Licensee. 

12. This Stipulation and Order, the files, records, and proceedings associated with this 

matter will constitute the entire record and may be reviewed by the Board in its consideration of 

this matter. 

13. Either party may seek enforcement of this Stipulation and Order m any 

appropriate civil court. 

14. Licensee has read, understands, and agrees to this Stipulation and Order and has 

voluntarily s igned the Stipulation and Order. Licensee is aware this Stipulation and Order must 

be approved by the Board before it goes into effect. The Board may approve the Stipulation and 

Order as proposed, approve it subject to specified change, or reject it. lf the changes are 

acceptable to Licensee, the Stipulation and Order will take effect and the order as modified will 

be issued. If the changes are unacceptable to Licensee or the Board rejects the Stipulation and 

Order, it will be of no effect except as specified in the following paragraph. 

15. Licensee agrees that if the Board rejects this Stipulation and Order or a lesser 

remedy than indicated in this Stipulation, and this matter comes again before the Board, Licensee 
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will assert no claim that the Board was prejudiced by its review and discuss ion of this Stipulation 

and Order or of any records relating to it. 

16. This Stipulation and Order docs not limit the Board's authority to proceed against 

Licensee by initiating a contested case hearing or by other appropriate means on the basis of any 

act, conduct, or adm ission of Licensee which constitutes grounds for d isciplinary action and 

which is not directly related to the specific facts and circumstances set forth herein. 

VII. 

DATA PRACTICES NOTICES 

17. Th is Stipulation and Order constitutes disciplinary action by the Board and ts 

classified as public data pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 13.4 1, subdiv ision 5. Data 

regarding this action will be prov ided to data banks as required by Federal law or consistent with 

Board policy. While thi s Stipulation and Order is in effect, information obtained by the Board 

pursuant to this Order is considered active investigative data on a licensed health professional , 

and as such, is classified as confidential data pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 13.4 1, 

subdivision 4. 

18. This Stipulation contains the entire agreement between the parties, there being no 

other agreement of any kind, verbal or otherwise, which varies this Stipulation. 

LICENSEE 

Dated: 

9 

FOR THE STANDARDS OF 
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ORDER 

Upon consideration of the Stipulation and all the files, records and proceedings herein, 

the terms of the Stipulation are approved and adopted, and the recommended remedy set forth in 

the Stipu lation is hereby issued as an Order of thi s Board eITective this ~ day of 

9~ ,20lf 

10 

MINNESOTA BOARD 
OF EXAMINERS FOR 
NURSING HOME A DMINISTRATORS 

RAe~~ 
Executive Director 


